

**BYLAWS OF THE  
KITSAP COUNTY TRANSPORTATION BENEFIT AREA AUTHORITY  
(dba Kitsap Transit)**

**SECTION 1: NAME.**

The legal name of this Corporation is Kitsap County Transportation Benefit Area Authority, a municipal corporation and public transportation benefit area duly organized under the laws of the State of Washington. This Corporation is authorized to do business as Kitsap Transit.

**SECTION 2: OFFICES.**

Unless or until changed by resolution of the Board of Commissioners, the principal offices of Kitsap Transit shall be located at 60 Washington Avenue, Suite 200, Bremerton, Washington. Kitsap Transit may have such other offices, within Kitsap County, as the Board may determine from time to time.

**SECTION 3: COMPONENT JURISDICTIONS AND BOUNDARIES.**

Unless or until changed in conformance with the requirements of Chapter 36.57A RCW, the boundaries of Kitsap Transit include all of the territory within Kitsap County, Washington. The component jurisdictions shall be Kitsap County and all component incorporated cities located within the boundaries of Kitsap Transit.

**SECTION 4: GOVERNING BODY.**

The governing body of Kitsap Transit shall be a Board of Commissioners (the "Board") consisting of nine (9) voting members ("Members") and one (1) Non-Voting Member ("Non-Voting Member").

**A. Voting Members.**

1. The Voting Members shall be comprised of the following elected officials:
  - a) Two elected officials selected by and serving at the pleasure of the Bremerton City Council; and
  - b) One elected official selected by and serving at the pleasure of the Poulsbo City Council; and
  - c) One elected official selected by and serving at the pleasure of the Port Orchard City Council; and
  - d) One elected official selected by and serving at the pleasure of the Bainbridge Island City Council; and

- e) Three members of the Legislative body of Kitsap County; and
  - f) One At-Large Member selected by the City Council of Bainbridge Island, Port Orchard and Poulsbo (the "Three Cities") in accordance with the provisions set forth in Section A.2 below.
2. The "At Large Member" position shall be governed by the following:
- a) The At-Large Member shall serve for a term of two (2) calendar years.
  - b) The At-Large Member shall rotate between the Three Cities in the following order beginning on January 1, 2019.
    - i. City of Port Orchard
    - ii. City of Bainbridge Island
    - iii. City of Poulsbo
  - c) The At-Large Member for each respective City must be an elected official of such City selected by and serving at the pleasure of such City's Council.
  - d) A City which has the right to select the At-Large Member may, by written notice sent to Kitsap Transit's Board Chair and Clerk not later than December 1 of the year prior to the year such City has the right to select the At-Large Member, decline to select such member, in which case, the At-large Member shall be selected by the City Council of the next City in line for the right to select the At-Large Member. The City which selects the At-Large member shall provide Kitsap Transit's Board Chair and Clerk with the name of its At-Large Member no later than January 31 of the first year of such Member's Term.
3. Miscellaneous.
- a) Each City must select and provide Kitsap Transit's Board Chair and Clerk of the Board the name(s) of its Voting Member(s) no later than January 31<sup>st</sup> of each year beginning with the 2019 calendar year.
  - b) If a Voting Member ceases to be an elected official, resigns or becomes incapacitated or deceased, the legislative authority of the Component Jurisdiction of which such Member was a Member shall select a successor who shall fill out an unexpired term of such Member. Such successor shall be an elected official selected by and serving at the pleasure of such jurisdiction. If the Component Jurisdiction has designated an Alternate Voting Member pursuant to Section A.3.(c), the Alternate shall serve and vote as such jurisdiction's Voting Member of the Board unless and until a successor is selected by such jurisdiction.
  - c) Each Component Jurisdiction may select an alternate or alternates for their respective Voting Member(s). An alternate must also be an elected official selected by the legislative authority of such Component Jurisdiction, who may serve and vote in the event that the primary Voting Member is unable to attend.
  - d) The legislative authority of each Component Jurisdiction may determine the length of the term of its selected Voting Member(s).

B. Non-Voting Member.

- a. The Non-Voting Member shall be appointed by the labor organizations (the "Labor Organizations") which represent employees of Kitsap Transit. Such Labor Organizations currently consist of Amalgamated Transit Union Local 587, the International Association of Machinists and Aerospace Workers, District Lodge 60, Local Lodge 282; and the International Brotherhood of Chauffeurs, Teamsters, Helpers Local 589.
2. In the event the Labor Organizations cannot unanimously agree on the Non-Voting Member, then the Non-Voting Member shall be selected by a majority vote of the Labor Organizations, with each Labor Organization having a single vote. By way of example, so long as there are three Labor Organizations, the Non-Voting Member shall require approval of two of the three Labor Organizations.
3. Non-Voting Members shall be elected in December of each year and shall serve for a term of two (2) years beginning on January 1 following the election of such Non-Voting Member. The Non-Voting Member shall comply with all governing by-laws and policies of Kitsap Transit. The Board Chairperson (or Vice-Chairperson in the absence of the Chairperson) of Kitsap Transit shall exclude the Non-Voting Member from attending any executive session held for the purpose of discussing negotiations with labor organizations. The Board Chairperson (or Vice-Chairperson in the absence of the Chairperson) of Kitsap Transit may exclude the Non-Voting Member from attending any other executive session. However, the Board Chairperson (or Vice-Chairperson in the absence of the Chairperson) shall consider, on a case by case basis, the appropriateness of the Non-Voting Member's participation in matters to be addressed in Executive Sessions, and in exercising this authority, the Chairperson (or Vice-Chairperson) shall refrain from making any arbitrary or capricious decisions.
4. Following the election of a Non-Voting Member, KT's Executive Director, Board Chair or their Designee shall review KT's By-Laws and policies governing Board Meetings with each incoming Non-Voting Member, including specifically, the strict confidentiality of all executive session matters.

C. Governing Body - Periodic Review of Composition

1. Every four years, a meeting shall be called for the review of the Kitsap Transit's governing body, as provided in RCW 36.57A.055, as hereafter amended. At this meeting, members of the county legislative authority and the elected representative of each component city within Kitsap Transit's boundaries shall review the composition of the Kitsap Transit Board and change the composition of the Board if the change is deemed appropriate. The majority of those present at the meeting constitutes a quorum.

- a) The Executive Director will initiate the meeting by sending a letter to each component city advising each city that it must designate an elected representative to attend the Review Meeting.
  - b) A notice of the proposed meeting must be transmitted to the designated representatives of the County and component cities twenty (20) days prior to the proposed meeting.
  - c) At the time the meeting is convened, a chair shall be selected to preside over the meeting. The Clerk of the Board shall serve as the Clerk for the meeting to record and keep minutes of the meeting.
- D. Subsequent Composition Review. With the majority vote of Kitsap Transit's Board of Commissioners, the Board may call a meeting for the review of Kitsap Transit's Governing Body in two-year intervals subject to the requirements and procedures set forth in RCW 36.57A.050 and RCW 36.57A.055.

**SECTION 5: MEETINGS OF THE BOARD.**

- A Regular Board Meetings. As provided in Resolution No. 16-47 adopted on September 6, 2016, Regular Meetings of the Board shall be held the first and third Tuesday of each month in accordance with the Open Public Meetings Act (RCW 42.30) at the following times and locations:
- i. 1<sup>st</sup> Tuesday each month beginning at 10:30 AM at the Norm Dicks Government Center located at 345 6th Street, Bremerton, WA 98337.
  - ii. 3<sup>rd</sup> Tuesday each month beginning at 8:30AM at the Kitsap Transit's Main Offices, located at 60 Washington Avenue, Bremerton, WA 98337.
- B. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board may be called by the Chairperson or a majority of the Members of the Board at any time by delivering written notice by mail or electronic transmission to each Member of the Board and to the Clerk of the Board. The call and notice must specify the time and place of the meeting and shall be delivered not less than 24 hours before the time specified for such meeting. Notices shall be delivered to the media in conformance with RCW 42.30.080 by the Clerk of the Board. The provisions of RCW 42.80.080 shall govern waiver of notice, delivery of notice and emergency meetings for which certain notice requirement may be dispensed.
- C. Quorum. At all meetings of the Board, a majority of the Members of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business.
- D. Chairperson. The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the Board. In the event of his/her absence from any meeting, the Vice-Chairperson shall preside.

- E. Voting. All Members in attendance, including the Chairperson, at Board meetings shall vote on matters brought before them unless (i) excused by a majority of Members in attendance; (ii) such Member abstains in conformance with the abstention provisions of Roberts Rules of Order; or (iii) such Member has recused himself or herself. Motions drawing a tie vote shall be deemed lost. The vote of each Member on a particular matter shall be recorded in the minutes.
- F. Remote Attendance. From time to time, it is not possible for a Member to attend a Board Meeting. In limited instances, Kitsap Transit would benefit by a Member's participation by means of remote communication. The Board recognizes the benefits of the fullest practicable attendance and participation by its members. Attendance from remote locations is intended to be an alternative and a relatively infrequently used method for participation by Members. Remote attendance may occur as follows:
1. The Chair or Vice Chair may approve a Member's attendance at a Board Meeting via remote communication in limited instances, including emergencies that require immediate action or remedy.
  2. In no event shall the Board Chair or Vice Chair approve a Member's remote attendance unless satisfactory equipment is available. Satisfactory equipment shall mean any telephone or other device equipped with a speaker function capable of broadcasting the Member's voice clearly and sufficiently enough to be heard by those in attendance at the meeting. The device must allow the Member to pose and answer questions as posed from time to time.
  3. During any meeting that a Member is attending via remote communication, the Chair or presiding officer shall state the name of the Member attending via remote communication and the reasons for such attendance.
  4. Members attending via remote communication may participate and vote during the meeting as if they were physically present at the meeting.
  5. In the case of Executive Sessions, the Board may permit remote participation on a case-by-case basis and only when the Board considers such participation to be necessary and the Board is confident in the security of such remote communications.
  6. Participation in accordance with these provisions shall constitute attendance within the meaning of these Bylaws.

Remote attendance by the full Board is contemplated to be by telephone conference call and/or online web conferencing, with access information provided to participating Board Members, staff and members of the public at least 24 hours in advance of a regularly scheduled meeting, subject to the conditions existing at the time of the emergency pursuant to the emergency exception for the times and places for meetings in RCW 42.30.070. All voting will be by roll call vote. In all such cases, a speakerphone shall be available at the meeting location or other designated physical location where the public can attend to listen to the discussion.

- G. Order of Business. The order of business at Board meetings shall be as directed by the Chairperson unless altered by a majority vote of the Members of the Board at a properly convened meeting of the Board.
- H. Conduct of Meetings. Robert's Rules of Order shall govern the conduct of Board meetings except where in conflict with these Bylaws, other resolutions of the Board, the Open Public Meetings Act under Chapter 42.30 RCW, or other applicable law. Meetings may be adjourned or continued subject to compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act.
- I. Public Comment. Members of the public shall have the right to make comments and statements regarding the affairs of Kitsap Transit in general, and matters on the Agenda in particular, during the portion of the meeting of the Board set aside for public comment. Unless a different length of time is announced by the Chairperson prior to the beginning of the public comment period, public comment by each speaker shall be limited to three (3) minutes. In the event a Member poses a question to such speaker, the Chairperson may extend such speaker's time as the Chairperson deems reasonable or necessary to enable the speaker to respond.

The Board shall have the authority to establish, through the adoption of resolutions, rules governing the conduct of public comment, including changes to the amount of time allocated for such comment and the length of time allocated to each speaker and rules and guidelines reasonably necessary to maintain order and protect the health and safety of all persons in attendance.

- J. Executive Sessions. Executive Sessions shall be governed by the Open Public Meetings Act. Board Members shall (i) protect the confidentiality of all communications and information discussed or presented during the course of all executive sessions and not reveal, divulge or disclose such communication or information, unless required by the controlling laws of the State of Washington and (ii) comply with the laws of the State of Washington.
- K. Corporate Decisions: The act of a majority of the Members present at a meeting of the Board at which a quorum is present shall be the act of Kitsap Transit, unless a greater number is required by law or the Bylaws.
- L. Recording and Minutes. Meetings of the Board shall be recorded in conformance with the requirements of the State law. Minutes of the meeting of the Board shall be prepared by the Clerk of the Board and require the approval of the Board at the next regular meeting of the Board.

#### **SECTION 6: CHAIRPERSON AND VICE-CHAIRPERSON.**

- A. Election and Term. The Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson shall be a Member of the Board. The Vice-Chairperson shall be elected by a majority vote of the Members at a regular or special meeting of the Board at either the last meeting in December or the first meeting in

January of each year. Unless the Vice-Chairperson is no longer an elected official serving as a Board Member or unable or unwilling to serve as the Chairperson, the Vice-Chairperson shall serve as the Chairperson of the Board beginning in January of the year after such person was elected as the Vice Chairperson. In the event of a vacancy of the Chairperson, the Vice-Chairperson shall become the Chairperson and the Board Members shall elect a new Vice-Chairperson at the next regular meeting of the Board.

- B. Duties of the Chairperson. In addition to the powers and duties set forth in these Bylaws, the Chairperson shall have such other powers and duties as shall be prescribed by law or by resolution of the Board.
  
- C. Duties of the Vice-Chairperson. In addition to the powers and duties set forth in these Bylaws, the Vice-Chairperson shall have such other powers and duties as shall be prescribed by law or by resolution of the Board. In the absence of the Chairperson, the Vice-Chairperson shall perform the duties of the Chairperson and, when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the Chairperson. The Vice-Chairperson shall perform such other duties as may be assigned to him/her by the Chairperson or by the Board.

**SECTION 7: CLERK OF THE BOARD AND DEPUTY CLERK OF THE BOARD.**

The Board shall appoint a Clerk of the Board who shall have such powers and perform such duties as shall be prescribed by the Bylaws and/or as directed by the Board. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Clerk of the Board shall insure all meetings of the Board are recorded or transcribed as required by State law, shall be responsible for the preparation of minutes of each meeting of the Board and shall serve as the Parliamentarian to advise the Board so as to ensure the meetings of the Board are conducted in conformance with these Bylaws.

The Board may also appoint a Deputy Clerk who shall have such power and perform such duties as shall be prescribed by law, the Bylaws, and/or the Board in the absence of the Clerk.

**SECTION 8: LEGAL COUNSEL.**

- A. Selection. The Board may appoint General Legal Counsel and Labor Counsel as necessary or desirable. General Legal Counsel and Labor Counsel will work with staff as requested by staff or as directed by the Board, but in all events will report to the Board. The Executive Director may, from time to time, contract with Special Counsel to provide legal representation to Kitsap Transit when General Legal Counsel or Labor Counsel are unavailable, have conflicts of interest or recommend specialized counsel for individual matters requiring specialized expertise; but in all events the Board reserves the right to terminate or limit such representation as the Board deems appropriate.
  
- B. Confidential Matters. In the case of confidential communications subject to the attorney-client privilege, attorneys for Kitsap Transit (i) shall not provide any confidential

communications to the Non-Voting Member unless those communications involve matters discussed at an executive session at which the Non-Voting Member was in attendance; and (ii) nor shall the attorneys have any attorney-client relationship with or owe any duties to the Non-Voting Member.

**SECTION 9: APPOINTMENTS**

- A. Committees. Committees of the Board may be created from time to time by the Board as deemed necessary or appropriate by the Board. Except where a motion is adopted with respect to a particular committee specifying a different method of appointment, the Chairperson shall make the appointments to such committees. If the Board desires to include persons to serve on the committee who are not Members of the Board, the Board must approve any such appointments.
  
- B. Kitsap Transit is a member representative to Boards and Committees throughout the Puget Sound region, representing Kitsap Transit's interests as it pertains to transportation, grant funding and regional planning. Appointments to Boards and Committees shall be made by the Chairperson with confirmation by the Board of Commissioners.
  - i. Appointments will be reviewed annually for confirmation at the first Board of Commissioners meeting in February.
  
  - ii. It is understood that upon appointment, the Kitsap Transit Board member will be representing the interests of Kitsap Transit and the component jurisdictions as a whole and not the specific interest and needs of the component jurisdiction of which the Member is an elected official serving on the Board of Kitsap Transit.

**SECTION 10: RECORDS.**

- A. Duties of the Clerk of the Board. The Clerk of the Board shall be responsible for keeping the minutes of the meetings of the Board, all resolutions of the Board and all matters required by applicable law and/or the Board. All records of the proceedings of the Board shall be kept at the principal office of Kitsap Transit and shall be made available for inspection by the public in accordance with state law.
  
- B. Minutes. Minutes of all Board meetings shall be provided to each Member and Non-Voting Member of the Board in the materials provided for the next regular meeting. The official record for each meeting shall be signed by the Chairperson and the Clerk of the Board.

**SECTION 11: CONTRACTS, WARRANTS, DEPOSITS, FUNDS, AND GIFTS.**

- A. Grant Agreements. The Executive Director of Kitsap Transit or his/her designee is authorized to sign and enter into any necessary documents ("Documents") which shall be required to apply for grants, receive funding, or facilitate the successful completion of any federally or

state funded projects ("Projects"). This authority shall include applications, certifications, contracts, memorandums of understanding or any necessary documents as required by the Federal Transit Administration or any other federal funding agency, the Washington State Department of Transportation or any other state funding agency to enable Kitsap Transit to receive grant funds or other sources of financial assistance. The provisions of this subsection 12(A) are subject to the following restrictions and conditions:

- i. All such grants or funding must relate to Projects contained within Kitsap Transit's six (6) year Transit Development Plan that has been approved by the Board.
  - ii. Kitsap Transit shall not expend or be required to expend any local funds unless approved by the Board in an adopted budget or by separate resolution, or the expenditure falls within the financial authority of the Executive Director as set forth in Section 13 below. All other Documents pertaining to Projects, Project undertakings and expenditures shall require the approval or ratification of the Board.
  - iii. At each Regular Board Meeting, the Executive Director shall provide the Board with reports of (1) its financial performance and condition and (2) the progress of its capital project budget.
- B. Disbursements. All disbursements of Kitsap Transit shall be by warrant or electronic funds transfer. All requests for disbursements shall be signed by such officer, Member, agent or employee of Kitsap Transit and in such manner as shall, from time to time, be determined by resolution of the Board. In the absence of such a resolution, the Chairperson, following approval by the Board, shall sign a record of disbursements.
- C. Notes. All notes or other evidences of indebtedness, including bills issued or incurred in the name of Kitsap Transit, shall be signed by such officer, Member, agent or employee of Kitsap Transit and in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board. In the absence of such a resolution, the Chairperson, following approval by the Board, shall sign such notes or other evidence of indebtedness.
- D. Deposits. All funds of Kitsap Transit shall be deposited with the Kitsap County Treasurer. The Treasurer of Kitsap County shall be custodian of the fund and is, subject to approval by resolution of the Board, authorized to invest such funds in the manner provided for similar county funds.
- E. Gifts. Kitsap Transit may accept, on behalf of Kitsap Transit, any contribution, gift, bequest, or device for any purpose of Kitsap Transit.

**SECTION 12: THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR.**

The affairs of Kitsap Transit shall be managed and supervised by an Executive Director appointed by the Board. The Executive Director shall serve as the chief executive officer of Kitsap Transit, shall report to and serve at the will of the Board, and shall undertake such duties and responsibilities as the Board may, from time to time, direct. The Executive Director shall have the authority to sign contracts and incur liabilities on behalf of Kitsap Transit subject to such restrictions and limitations set by resolution of the Board from time to time. Unless and until changed by subsequent resolution, Resolution No. 15-65 shall govern the Executive Director's financial authority.

**SECTION 13: RESOLUTIONS.**

All actions of the Board shall be undertaken by resolutions of the Board at a duly convened meeting of the Board in accordance with the provisions of Section 5 of these Bylaws as the same may be amended from time to time. The vote of each Member on all resolutions of the Board shall be recorded in the minutes of the Board, and each such resolution shall be signed by the Chairperson and Clerk of the Board.

**SECTION 14: AMENDMENTS TO BYLAWS.**

These Bylaws may be amended by majority vote of the Members in attendance at any Board meeting where a written notice of such meeting has been sent to Members advising them that amendments to the Bylaws may be considered.

**SECTION 15. MISCELLANEOUS.**

A. Conflicts. In the event of conflicts between these Bylaws, controlling law or resolutions of the Board, the following rules of construction shall apply:

- i. State and Federal laws shall control over inconsistent provisions of these Bylaws or the resolutions of the Board;
- ii. These Bylaws shall control over inconsistent provisions of resolutions of the Board adopted prior to the date hereof;
- iii. Resolutions of the Board adopted by the Board after the date these Bylaws were adopted shall control over inconsistent provisions of these Bylaws, unless prohibited by State or Federal law.

B. Savings Clause. In the event any provision of these Bylaws are invalidated either by reason of subsection 16(a) above or by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions of these Bylaws shall not be invalidated thereby and shall remain in full force and effect.

C. Repealer. These Bylaws supersede and replace all prior Bylaws of Kitsap Transit.

**SECTION 16. BOARD CONDUCT.**

A. Board Meetings.

1. Board Business. Board meetings are designed to hear and take formal action on matters of agency concern, including, but not limited to, such things as recognition of retiring staff; staff presentations, committee reports, adopting resolutions, conducting public hearings and considering measures and proposals offered by Board Members.
2. Attendance. Board Members will inform the Chair and Clerk of the Board if they are unable to attend any Board meeting.
3. Presiding Officer. The Chair presides over Board meetings. In the Chair's absence, the Vice-Chair shall preside. In the absence of both the Chair and Vice-Chair, the longest serving member of the Board shall preside.
4. Order. The Presiding Officer has the authority to preserve order at all meetings of the Board, to cause the removal of any person from any meeting for disorderly conduct, to place a limit on debate and to enforce the rules of the Board. The Presiding Officer may also seek the assistance of KT staff to restore order at any meeting as authorized by law.
5. Staffing. The Executive Director or designee will attend all Board meetings and Executive Sessions unless excused. The Executive Director may make recommendations to the Board and, with the consent of Board Chair, shall have the right to take part in all Board discussions. The Executive Director shall have no vote. If the Executive Director is unable to attend Board meeting, the Executive Director shall name a staff member to stand in for the Executive Director.
6. Legal Counsel. Legal Counsel will attend all Board meetings unless excused, and will, upon request, give an opinion, either written or oral, on legal questions. The Legal Counsel shall decide all questions of interpretations of these rules. The Legal Counsel or the Clerk of the Board shall decide all parliamentary questions that may arise at a Board meeting.
7. Staff Participation. Other staff and consultants will attend Board meetings upon request of the Executive Director to provide information and respond to questions.

B. Board Discussions.

1. General. Board Members should ask the Chair to be recognized, be direct and candid, speak one at a time, ask questions to clarify information and be conscious of the time limits during discussions. Each Board Member is responsible for facilitating discussions.
2. Public Hearings. When necessary, it is appropriate to defer action on a hearing or refer matters back to staff. When doing so, Board Members should specify what new or additional information is needed and determine when the matter should be brought

back for further deliberation. The decision to close or continue a public hearing may be had upon a consensus of the Board.

3. Interruption. No Member of the Board shall interrupt or argue with any other Member while such Member has the floor.
4. Courtesy. Members of the Board, in the discussion, comments or debate of any matter or issue, shall be courteous in their language and deportment and shall not engage in contemptuous or disorderly behavior, or discuss or comment on personalities, or indulge in derogatory remarks or insinuations in respect to any other Board Member, or any member of the staff or the public, but shall at all times confine their remarks to those facts which are germane and relevant, as determined by the Presiding Officer, to the question or matter under discussion.

#### C. Motions And Procedures.

1. General. Board Members should clearly and concisely state their motions. The Chair will state the name of the board Member who made the motion and the name of the Board Member who made the second. The Chair may make a motion or a second, if he or she first designates the Vice-Chair or, in his or her absence or inability to act, the senior member of the Board as the Presiding Officer during consideration of the matter.

Prior to voting on a motion, the motion should be repeated by the Clerk of the Board or the Chair to ensure that the action taken and the meeting record is clear.

Motions for nominations, withdrawal of a motion, agenda order, roll call votes and a point of order do not require a second. Other motions die if they do not receive a second.

The Chair will ask for a voice vote for all final decisions. The Clerk of the Board shall maintain a record of the votes. Any Board Member may request an oral roll call vote on any decision.

At the conclusion of any vote, the Chair will announce the results.

As noted above, Robert's Rules of Order will apply in those areas of procedure not covered under these rules.

2. Withdrawal. A motion may be withdrawn by the mover at any time without the consent of the Board.
3. Tie. A motion that receives a tie vote fails.

4. Table. A motion to lay on the table is not debatable and precludes all amendments or further debate. A motion to lay on the table sets aside a main motion temporarily to take up a more pressing or important issue.
5. Postpone. A motion to postpone to a certain time is debatable and amendable. The matter may be considered later at the same meeting or at a future meeting.

A motion to postpone indefinitely is debatable and is not amendable. It may be reconsidered at the same meeting only if approved by an affirmative vote. This motion is not to postpone, but to reject the matter without a direct vote.

#### D. Electronic Communications At Meetings.

##### 1. Definitions.

(i) Electronic Communications. Include, but are not limited to, email, text messages, instant messages, voicemail messages, social media posts, tweets or messages or other forms of communications transmitted or received by technological means.

(ii) Electronic Communications Devices. Include, but are not limited to computers, cell phones, notebooks, tablets or other devices capable of transmitting or receiving messages electronically.

2. Electronic Communication Prohibitions. Except as provided below and as to emergencies which require a Board Member's immediate attention, Board Members shall not send or receive electronic communications during a Board Meeting.
3. To ensure focus on the discussions during meetings, Board Members should only use the internet during meetings to access Board agenda packet information, Bard resource documents, including, but not limited to, Board Policies, Bylaws, Robert's Rules of Order or other research relevant to the discussion, other than communications with any person including other Board Members.

#### E. Communication With Staff.

1. At Meetings. The Executive Director shall insure that appropriate and sufficient members of the staff attend Board Meetings to answer any questions Board Members may have regarding any matters pending before the Board during the Board Meeting.
2. Other Communications. Except during Board Meetings, Board Members should refrain from contacting Staff Members directly. Instead, all requests for information, preparation of reports or initiation of any project or study desired by Board Members must be directed to the Executive Director or his/her designee. When requested, the Executive Director or his/her designee will provide an estimate of the time required to

fulfill a Board Member's request. Unless the information requested is of a personal, confidential or incidental nature, all Board Members will receive the information pursuant to any Board Member request.

F. Ethical Compliance.

1. Standards Of Conduct. Board Members must adhere to Kitsap Transit's Standards of Conduct set forth in Policy 05 of KT's Procurement Manual.

(i) The Chair and Board Members shall not contact or direct vendors, firms, businesses or organizations under contract or subcontract to KT to take any action, prepare any significant report or initiate any project or study without the approval of the Board.

(ii) Board Members must not attempt to interfere with or influence agency staff, including the Executive Director, in making appointments, awarding contracts, consultant selection or processing development actions. The Executive Director is directed to bring possible violations of this provision to the attention of the Chair or Vice-Chair.

G. Public Records Compliance.

1. Definition. A public record is defined by RCW 42.56.010(3) and includes any document, book, paper, photograph, file, sound recording, machine readable electronic record, electronic communications or other material, regardless of physical form or characteristics, made, received, filed or recorded in connection with the transaction of public business, whether or not confidential or restricted in use.

2. Prohibitions. Board Members should not use any personal Electronic Communication Device for the purpose of discussing, promoting, opposing or otherwise dealing with the conduct, operation, business or discussion of Kitsap Transit or its employees, agents, officers, contractors and Board Members (collectively, "KT Matters"). When dealing with KT Matters, Board Members should use Electronic Communication Devices provided by the Component Jurisdiction they represent or by Kitsap Transit.

3. Records Requests. Board Members must be mindful that if KT receives a records request that includes requests for all records in the possession of Board Members, including records involving KT Matters on Personal or Business Communication Devices, Board Members who have such records must turn over all such records.


4. Refusal To Comply. Board Members who refuse to turn over discoverable records requested by a requester that causes KT to incur fines, penalties, costs and/or attorney fees that would have been avoided but for a Board Member's refusal to comply with the Public Records Act, shall be personally liable to KT for all such fines, penalties, costs and fees.

H. Violations. In addition to the provisions of Section G(4), the Board and/or its Presiding Officer has the following rights to enforce this Section 16 pertaining to Board Conduct.

1. State Law. The Board has power under State law to impose punishment on its Members, short of removal from office, for violation of State law or Board Rules of Conduct.
2. Miscellaneous. If a Member of the Board violates the provisions of this Section 16, the Presiding Officer may call such Member to order, in which case, such Member shall be silent except to explain or continue in order. If the Presiding Officer shall transgress these rules or fail to call such Member to order, any other Member of the Board may, under a point of order, call the Presiding Officer or such other Member to order, in which case the Presiding Officer or such Member, as the case may be, shall be silent except to explain or continue in order. Additional consequences may include a verbal admonition, written reprimand, censure or expulsion from the meeting at which the conduct is occurring. Expulsion for such behavior in the Board's presence shall require the affirmative vote of a 2/3 majority of the Board, specifying in the order of expulsion the cause thereof.

**ADOPTED** by the Board of Commissioners of Kitsap Transit at a regular meeting thereof, held on 3rd day of December, 2024.

Signed by:  
  
782D47B21D054B5...  
Greg Wheeler, Chairperson

ATTEST:  
DocuSigned by:  
  
3395D24B46804E7  
Jackie Bidon, Clerk of the Board